p-ISSN: 2708-2113 | e-ISSN: 2708-3608

DOI(Journal): 10.31703/gesr

DOI(Volume): 10.31703/gesr/.2024(IX) DOI(Issue): 10.31703/gesr.2024(IX.II)



GLOBAL EDUCATIONAL STUDIES REVIEW

HEC-RECOGNIZED CATEGORY-Y

VOL. IX, ISSUE II, SPRING (JUNE-2024)



Double-blind Peer-review Research Journal www.gesrjournal.com

© Global Educational Studies Review



Humanity Publications (HumaPub)

www.humapub.com **Doi:**https://dx.doi.org/10.31703



Article Title

Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools

Global Educational Studies Review

p-ISSN: 2708-2113 **e-ISSN**: 2708-3608

DOI(journal): 10.31703/gesr

Volume: IX (2024)

DOI (volume): 10.31703/gesr.2024(IX)

Issue: II (Spring-June 2024)

DOI(Issue): 10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II)

Home Page www.gesrjournal.com

Volume: IX (2024)

https://www.gesrjournal.com/Current-issues

Issue: II-Spring (June-2024)

https://www.gesrjournal.com/Current-issues/9/2/2024

Scope

https://www.gesrjournal.com/about-us/scope

Submission

https://humaglobe.com/index.php/gesr/submissions

Google Scholar



Visit Us











Abstract

Today, educational leadership is extensively investigated, with a focus on the most common styles. The scale of effective educational leadership behavior depicts a visionary, proactive, knowledgeable, and change-agent leader in an academic setting. The current study investigates school teachers' perspectives on the effectiveness of their principal's leadership behavior in the school Education department in Punjab. It also examines the extent of disparity in the perception of participants due to gender and sector. The results indicated that these factors play a significant role in how teachers perceive the effectiveness of the educational behavior of head teachers. The head teachers were found to have effective educational leadership behavior as described by their relevant school teachers.

Keywords: Effectiveness, Educational Leadership, Behavior,

School Heads, Teachers' Perspective

Authors:

Rabia Ghaffar: (Corresponding Author)

Assistant Professor, Department of Education, Govt Graduate College for Women Wahdat Colony, Lahore,

Punjab, Pakistan.

(Email: rabia.edu2013@gmail.com)

Nargis Sultana: Lecturer, Department of Education, Govt Associate
College for Women Sukheki Mandi, Hafiz Abad,

Punjab, Pakistan.

Shafqat Ali: Professor, Department of Education, Minhaj University, Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan.

Pages: 21-29

DOI:10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03

DOI link: https://dx.doi.org/10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03

Article link: http://www.gesrjournal.com/article/A-b-c

Full-text Link: https://gesrjournal.com/fulltext/

Pdf link: https://www.gesrjournal.com/jadmin/Auther/31rvIolA2.pdf







$Humanity\ Publications\ (HumaPub)$



www.humapub.com **Doi:**https://dx.doi.org/10.31703

Citing this Article

		Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools							
03		Author	Rabia Ghaffar Nargis Sultan Shafqat Ali		DOI	10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03		03	
Pages		21-29	Year	2024	Volume	IX	Issue	II	
	APA		Ghaffar, R., Sultana, N., & Ali, S. (2024). Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools. <i>Global Educational Studies Review, IX</i> (II), 21-29. https://doi.org/10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03						
	CHI	(CAGO	Ghaffar, Rabia, Nargis Sultana, and Shafqat Ali. 2024. "Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools." <i>Global Educational Studies Review</i> IX (II):21-29. doi: 10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03.						
; Styles	HA	RVARD	GHAFFAR, R., SULTANA, N. & ALI, S. 2024. Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools. <i>Global Educational Studies Review</i> , IX, 21-29.						
Referencing & Citing Styles	МН	RA	Ghaffar, Rabia, Nargis Sultana, and Shafqat Ali. 2024. 'Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools', <i>Global Educational Studies Review</i> , IX: 21-29.						
Referenc	ML	A	Ghaffar, Rabia, Nargis Sultana, and Shafqat Ali. "Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools." <i>Global Educational Studies Review</i> IX.II (2024): 21-29. Print.						
	OXI	FORD	Ghaffar, Rabia, Sultana, Nargis, and Ali, Shafqat (2024), 'Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools', <i>Global Educati Studies Review</i> , IX (II), 21-29.						
	TUI	RABIAN	Insights into	the Effective Pra	ctices in Pakist	ani Schools	ting Educational ." <i>Global Educati</i> 703/gesr.2024(IX	onal Studies	







Pages: 21-29

Global Educational Studies Review

www.gesrjournal.com DOI: http://dx.doi.org/10.31703/gesr



URL: https://doi.org/10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03

Doi: 10.31703/gesr.2024(IX-II).03











Authors:

Rabia Ghaffar: (Corresponding Author)

Assistant Professor, Department of Education, Govt Graduate College for Women Wahdat Colony, Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan.

(Email: rabia.edu2013@gmail.com)

Nargis Sultana: Lecturer, Department of Education, Govt Associate College for Women Sukheki Mandi, Hafiz Abad, Punjab, Pakistan.

Shafqat Ali: Professor, Department of Education, Minhaj University, Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan.

Contents

- Introduction
- Research Objectives
- **Research Questions**
- Review of Literature
- Research Methodology
- Data Analysis
- Results and discussion
- Discussion
- Conclusion
- Recommendations
- References

Title

Navigating Educational Leadership: Insights into the Effective Practices in Pakistani Schools

Abstract

Today, educational leadership is extensively investigated, with a focus on the most common styles. The scale of effective educational leadership behavior depicts a visionary, proactive, knowledgeable, and change-agent leader in an academic setting. The current study investigates school teachers' perspectives on the effectiveness of their principal's leadership behavior in the school Education department in Punjab. It also examines the extent of disparity in the perception of participants due to gender and sector. The results indicated that these factors play a significant role in how teachers perceive the effectiveness of the educational behavior of head teachers. The head teachers were found to have effective educational leadership behavior as described by their relevant school teachers.

Keywords: Effectiveness, Educational Leadership, Behavior, School Heads, Teachers' Perspective

Introduction

Considering the importance of studying educational leadership and its role in nurturing a productive school environment, exploring leadership phenomena in depth is essential. Effective leadership plays a vital role in this era of competition in academia.

The current study gives a comprehensive view of the role of some salient features of a school leader that enable him to survive better. It makes his/her school a dynamic organization.

This study highlights the importance of characteristics of an academic leader like managerial behavior, instructional behavior, courage, reinforcement, and better communication





skills. It also stresses the role of a visionary leader in nurturing a good learning environment in school.

This study sheds light on the positive role of school heads. Effective school leaders must have command of communication skills, good managerial behavior, better instructional strategies, and personal characteristics like vision, courage, and good decision-making. Visionary school heads remain well-informed and have plans to achieve predetermined goals. They disseminate information quickly and stay active. Research proved that the positive attitude of a leader has a strong effect on the teachers and students (Ghaffar&Khan, 2024). Complex demographics have made it difficult for organizations to perform. The challenge is also very big for academic leaders and institute heads. Ghaffar et al. (2024) provided empirical evidence that the demographic complexity made it difficult for organizations to survive. The current study was a maiden effort to find out the effectiveness of leadership behavior, and it also aimed to explore the perceptions of teachers of public and private schools about the effectiveness of leadership behavior. It aimed to determine whether any noteworthy difference is found in teachers' perceptions due to sector and gender.

The current research explored the characteristics of effective educational leadership behavior. This is the first research on the topic in Pakistan's educational context. The literature on this topic is gaping, as no research provides empirical evidence of measuring the effectiveness of leadership behavior by teachers in the public and private sectors using the EELB scale in the educational context of Punjab, Pakistan. This unique research investigated the differences in perception due to the sector and gender disparity. This dimension provided new directions for future studies.

Research Objectives

The objectives of the study were to

- 1. Solicit the opinion of teachers about the effectiveness of school leadership behavior.
- 2. Uncover the significant differences in teachers' perceptions of the effectiveness of school leadership behavior concerning different demographics.

Research Questions

1. What is the teachers' perception of the effectiveness of school leadership behavior?

2. Is there any difference in teachers' opinions about the school leadership behavior due to gender and sector?

Review of Literature

The role of leadership is very important in the success of any organization. Previous research depicts that organizational performance is connected with leadership behaviors and that leadership behavior has a great impact on the performance of that particular organization (Ibrahim & Daniel, 2019). The phenomenon of leadership is investigated worldwide. Many researchers have sought to define educational leadership over time, resulting in various definitions depending on how each approaches the subject (Sweeney et al., 2018; Daniels et al., 2019). Numerous components of educational leadership that are also effective criteria for educational leadership can be understood by listing relevant definitions and analyzing these definitions. We can more clearly identify and distinguish between these characteristics that contribute to a leader's effectiveness if we have a firm grip on the definition of educational leadership and its major elements, such as actions, behaviors, and styles (Dimopoulos, 2020). Previous research depicts that organizational performance is connected with leadership behaviors and that leadership behavior has a great impact on the performance of that particular organization (Ibrahim& Daniel, 2019). The impact of leadership behavior on organizational performance is based on leadership skills like managerial behavior, instructional behavior, vision, courage, communication skills, and decision-making (Al-maaitah, 2021).

Effective leadership behavior instills a sense of belonging and allows for their active participation in decision-making. Therefore, it is recommended that institutions should prioritize using transformational and democratic leadership behaviors to improve the overall performance of their organizations (Nabella et al., 2022). The goal of leadership is to accomplish the organization's objectives. The leadership's ability to function effectively under stress determines what is most effective. It is important to study the results of actions to evaluate their effectiveness (Nishii &Leroy, 2022).

Some more characteristics determine the effectiveness of the behavior of the head teacher. Mutual trust is necessary to foster organizational adaptation and the employee perceptions of leading characters to improve leadership effectiveness and consider other psychological empowerment elements. Leadership must foster a climate that supports knowledge sharing among people to make firms successful operationally and strategically (Cakir & Adiguzel, <u>2020</u>). School principals inculcate national education principles as a foundation for setting shared goals, and they communicate these values to the teachers in their schools. They maintain the track of curriculum development and management.

Previous studies indicate that school principals put forth tremendous effort to create the most positive learning environment possible and that they were quite successful in this endeavor; in addition, the findings of a study revealed that daily routines, the development of school resources, and an over-centralized organizational structure were all identified as significant barriers to the instructional leadership of school administrators (Gaol, 2021).

The leader's ability to communicate effectively with internal and external audiences is critical during times of crisis. Marsen (2019) points out that successful crisis communication must handle crisis and post-conflict image management. Heath and O'Hair (2020) said in a *crisis communication manual* that good communication is very important (Imran, et al., 2022). Through successful communication, all parties can build mutual understanding and obligations (Richardson et al., 2021). During a crisis, good educational leaders engage in holding, which suggests that they are containing and interpreting what is happening. Leaders think logically, provide reassurance, and assist them in remaining cohesive. It is equally crucial to do this work to inspire others; it is a requirement (Young, 2021).

Educational equity and access to education are being discussed worldwide when schools scrambled to make it easier for people who could not attend school to get online education. Every student must be given the resources they need to learn and grow in an educational setting. Early in the pandemic, it became clear that food and mental health services would have to be more important than education, at least for a short time. Our school leaders' emphasis on basic needs, social-emotional health, and access to technology matches the study literature's recognition that these things can help keep people stable in a crisis (McLeod &Dulsky, 2021).

According to Harris and Jones (2020), a new chapter is being written about school leadership in disruptive times that has the potential to surpass and overshadow everything that has been written previously on the subject. Many of the schools that we spoke with may already be in the process of reorienting and reinventing themselves. Good leadership behavior spreads a culture of equity, and it depicts the vision

of a leader/head teacher (Kilag et al., 2023). Considering teacher's opinions about the head teacher play a great role in making the school climate better. Studies reveal that teachers who perceive head teachers positively stay long on the job. They have better job satisfaction and job embeddedness levels (Ghaffar&Khan, 2024). Negative perception causes turnover and teacher burnout which ultimately results in low student achievement (Saloviita &Pakarinen, 2021). There is a gap in the literature about evaluating effective educational leadership behavior in Pakistan's educational context. Past studies also don't provide any evidence regarding the role of factors like managerial skills, vision, courage, decision-making, and reinforcement (Imran & Akhtar, 2023).

It is also important to study what the teacher thinks about the leadership behavior of their heads. Whether they consider it effective? Previous studies like Ghaffar et al. (2023) provide empirical evidence that the staff is greatly affected by the behavior of the leadership level. They provided evidence that the head teacher has a strong effect on the retention and job satisfaction of teachers (Ghaffar &Khan, 2024). The heads of the school create an environment of collaboration. It is essential to know what coworkers, staff, and faculty think about the effectiveness of leadership educational behavior of their heads of schools. According to a study by Shahbal et al. (2022), it is compulsory to explore the perception of teachers & academia if any research is conducted in an educational scenario. The demographics of participants also play a vital role in determining the perception of any educational phenomena (Ghaffar & Khan, 2024). The same fact is proved by Ning et al. (2020), in research conducted in a quite different cultural setup in China that demographics have a great effect on the perception of participants. So, the current research filled this population and literature gap.

Research Methodology

This study was quantitative. Quantitative studies are very useful because they generate numerical data and have a statistical representation of results. The results of the quantitative studies can be generated for a huge population (Mohajan, 2020). The philosophic underpinning of quantitative research is positivism (Tamminen, 2020). The results can be generalized to a wider population. The data from the participants was gathered using a questionnaire and survey method to examine their viewpoints. Participants were asked to answer a 48-item questionnaire. A five-point Likert scale was used to measure the perception.

Population& Sample

The target population included all 383 public and 265 private high schools for boys and girls in the district of Lahore. The sample is given in the table below.

 Table 1

 Demographic information of the sample

Demographic Information	n (%)	School Systems
Gender		
Male	298(52%)	
Female	282(48%)	
Sector		
Public	322(56%)	50 high schools of boys and girls running under the School Education department, Govt of Punjab
		Unique School System,
Private	258(44%)	Dar e Arqam
		The Punjab School

Researchers cannot contact everyone, including the entire population. So, the individuals who represent the parent population are selected using appropriate sampling techniques. The sample is representative of the target population's characteristics (Lohr, 2021). A convenience sampling technique was used. Convenience sampling is used when participants meet specific criteria, such as meeting at a time or geographical nearness. Many biases are associated with convenience sampling like proximity and subjective judgment of the participants. However, this risk can be reduced by using online surveys (Obilore, 2023). There were 383 public high schools for boys and girls in the district of

Lahore. Twenty-five schools for boys and 25 for girls were selected from the public sector, 322 teachers were selected from the public, and 258 teachers from private schools, including Unique School System, Dar e Arqam, and The Punjab School, participated in the research. There were 298 male and 282 female teachers. Researchers collected their data from the school education department for public sector schools and from the HR department of the concerned private school system and the questionnaire was sent online. This is how the risk of any kind of bias was eliminated in this study and results obtained were more generalizable.

Research Instrument

Table2
Instrument of the study and its reliability

Facto	rs of Effective Educational Leadership Behavior (EELB)Scale	items in each factor	Cronbach alpha
1.	Managerial Behavior	6	0.720
2.	Instructional Behavior	7	0.731
3.	Courage	3	0.801
4.	Vision	3	0.751
5.	Passion	7	0.654
6.	Decision Making	4	0.675
7.	Persuasion	5	0.666
8.	Communication skills	2	0.690
9.	Collaboration	8	0.679
10.	Reinforcement	3	0.711
	Total	48	.820

There was not a single instrument available to measure effective educational leadership behavior in the school context of Pakistan. The researcher used a self-developed scale of effective educational leadership behavior (EELB) of head teachers to elicit the perception of high school teachers from the public and private sectors. This scale consists of ten factors and 48 items intended to measure managerial behavior, instructional behavior, vision, courage, passion, decision-making, persuasion, communication collaboration, and reinforcement characteristics depicted in the head teacher's behavior. The reliability score was in the acceptable range on all factors. The reliability of the scale was checked. The obtained value of Cronbach's alpha was .820 on the overall EELB scale which indicates a very good reliability of the instrument.

Validity of the Instrument

The validity of the scale was checked by eminent educationists. The suggested changes by experts were incorporated into the scale. It is important to conduct a pilot study to assess whether the instrument is fulfilling the aims of the study (Malmqvist et al., 2019). A small-scale pilot study was also conducted to check the language, understanding level, and appropriateness of items listed in the scale. The pilot study was conducted on 40 participants which enabled researchers to refine the scale and administer it to participants at the final data collection stage.

The Procedure of the Study

The researchers collected data from teachers of public and private high schools. Consent to collect data from teachers in public and private schools was obtained from officials of the

Results and discussion

Table 3Descriptive statistics of the key variable of the study (N=580)

Factors of the study	Mean	SD
Managerial Behavior	3.34	0.79
Instructional Behavior	3.33	0.67
Courage	3.52	0.75
Vision	3.51	0.75
Passion	3.58	0.76
Decision making	3.56	0.76
Persuasion	3.43	0.71
Communication skills	3.41	0.71

school education department, The Punjab school system, and the Dar e Arqam school system. Phone numbers and credentials were collected from concerned HR departments of public and private schools. Collecting data was a time-consuming and laborious procedure. Consent forms and the EELB questionnaire were sent online. An online survey was conducted using convenience sampling. Researchers obtained data, and the response rate was quite satisfactory i.e. 69%.

Ethical Considerations

All principles of ethics in the research were followed. Participants were informed by sending a consent letter along with the questionnaire. No one was forced to participate in the study. Researchers openly claimed that the information obtained from participants would be kept secret and used only for research purposes. It was also announced that no information about teachers participating in the study would be shared with any institute or department.

Data Analysis

Data was analyzed using SPSS 20 software. Demographic and numeric data obtained through the research instrument were separately entered into SPSS files. It is essential to obtain descriptive statistics on variables. Its purpose is to check that the researcher is not violating any assumption made by individual tests (Plant, 2020). Descriptive statistics was applied. It gives a variety of information. Mean and standard deviation were applied. Independent sample t-test was used to compare the mean score on the perception of participants based on gender and sector.

Factors of the study	Mean	SD
Collaboration	3.53	0.75
Reinforcement	3.60	0.77
Total EELB scale	3.60	0.77

Table 3 shows the factors of the study and their relative mean score and standard deviation. The factor of Instructional behavior mean score of 3.33 indicates that teachers are of the view that heads of their institutions have a great tendency to observe teacher activities in class, they frequently visit classrooms and arrange parent-teacher meetings. A magnitude mean score of 3.52 on the Courage factor depicts that head teachers of schools have courageous behavior towards warning the teachers and students if they don't perform up to the mark and boldly take action for better school performance. The mean score of 3.51 on the Vision factor indicates that teachers think that their head teacher has a broad vision about the progress of the school. On the Passion factor, the mean score of 3.58 proves the fact that teachers strongly perceive the fact that head teachers are punctual, hardworking, and passionate about making the learning environment of the school better. They warmly welcome new ideas. A mean score of 3.56 on the Decisionmaking factor shows that head teachers trust their team and

pick good ideas for innovation's persuasion factor, and a mean score of 3.43 depicts that head teachers have good observation and appreciate good ideas, nurture the rule of law in school, and create an enthusiastic environment. A mean score of 3.41 on the Communication Skills factor tells that head teachers have very good communication skills. School teacher perception (3.53) on the Collaboration factor proves that their head teachers like the participation of staff in school activities and they also share information with staff. The highest mean score 3.60 on the Reinforcement factor indicates that teachers have a very strong perception about the head teacher's ability to reinforce staff to work enthusiastically. They continuously get feedback from stakeholders to make things better. The mean score on the overall scale was 3.60 which indicates that the school heads possess an effective educational leadership behavior. They have the potential to make their concerned school a learning hub. Their vision and qualities are enabling teachers and the schools to grow and flourish professionally.

Table 4

Comparison between School Teacher Perceptions of Effective Educational Leadership Behavior of School Heads Based on Gender

Male			Female			Independent sample t-test	
N	Mean	SD	N	Mean	SD	t	P
298	159.01	30.43	282	164.68	30.71	2.032	.043*

^{*}P<.05

Table 4 presents the school teachers' perception of effective educational leadership behavior based on gender. An Independent sample t-test was used to compare the mean scores of the two groups. Males were 298 in number. Their mean score was 159.01 and their standard deviation was 30.43. Females were 282 who had a mean score of 164.68 and

their standard deviation was 30.71. The test generated a value of 2.032 and the p-value was .043. It indicates that there is a significant difference in the perception of teachers on a gender basis. Male teachers secured a high mean score that shows they gave more strong opinions about the effective educational leadership behavior of their school heads.

 Table 5

 Comparison between School Teacher Perceptions of Effective Educational Leadership Behavior of School Heads Based on Sector

Public			Private			Independent sample <i>t</i> -test	
N	Mean	SD	N	Mean	SD	t	P
322	206.01	36.97	258	148.23	26.09	2.079	.047*

^{*}P<.05

Table 5 demonstrates the perception of school teachers on effective educational leadership behavior on a sector basis. The mean score of teachers in the public sector is 206.01 and the standard deviation is 36.97.

The mean score of the perception of private teachers was 148.23 and the standard deviation was 26.09. Independent sample *t*-test generated a *t*-value of 2.079 and a p-value of .047. A noticeable difference was found between the perceptions of school teachers in the public and private sectors. The teachers of public sector schools have a great perception of the effective educational leadership behavior of the heads of the public schools.

Discussion

This study is an effort to understand the views of school teachers who were the sample of the study about the effectiveness of the educational leadership behavior of their head teacher. The results of the current study match the results of the study by Cakir &Adiguzel (2020). They presented the empirical evidence that school teachers' performance is enhanced by the motivation of the head teacher and it is good to foster an environment of collaboration, cooperation, and motivation for better performance in school.

The results showed that reinforcement by the head teacher of educational leadership has a strong effect on enhancing the performance of the organization. It verifies the results of the study by Haryono et al., (2020) which described the evidence that motivation and reinforcement by the head teacher have a positive correlation with the professional growth of school teachers.

Teachers strongly gave the opinion that their head teachers reinforce them and possess very effective educational leadership behavior. Some new aspects explored by the current study are courage, vision, passion, and persuasion. The score on these factors indicates the fact that they are the key components in shaping effective educational leadership behavior. The study revealed that different demographics such as gender and sector also have noteworthy roles in perceiving effective educational leadership phenomenon. It verifies the facts presented in the literature by Ning et al. (2020) and Shahbal et al. (2021)

proving with statistical evidence that male teachers have a strong perception of the effective educational leadership behavior of their relative school heads as compared to female teachers. The other dimension that became clear from the results is that heads of Public schools possess a more effective and strong educational behavior according to participants. Perception of teachers of public schools varies from that of private school teachers. It also gives a new dimension for future studies to consider the sector as a potential factor while measuring the opinions of teachers.

Conclusion

Educational leadership is very important in the current educational scenario. Educational institutes especially schools in Pakistan need dynamic and visionary leaders. Effective educational leadership behavior fosters a creative and conducive environment where stakeholders collaborate and share ideas, developing plans for the progress and growth of staff and the school. It is crucial to study all relevant factors of effective educational leadership behavior. Being the first-ever novice study in Pakistani school education setup, it has opened many avenues for further research. Hence this study filled the population gap as well as the empirical gap found in the literature. This study has laid a foundation for further studies on the topic.

Recommendations

This research has laid the foundation for many future research as it recommends the following dimensions.

- It is recommended that stakeholders arrange leadership training programs for nurturing effective leadership characteristics in school education leaders. It is essential to cope with the challenges of the modern and competitive educational world.
- The study recommends strongly considering the effect of demographic characteristics, which are of paramount importance in measuring perception. It must be considered while studying the effective educational leadership behavior of head teachers.
- The results of the study revealed gender disparity in the perception of school teachers. This is a unique aspect. Gender should be considered as a potential factor that plays a role in perceiving effective educational leadership behavior of head teachers.
- Being a maiden study effect of the sector should also be measured. Studying effective educational leadership behavior is very important as ever changing scenario of educational institutes on all levels demands dynamic leadership.

References

Al-Maaitah, D. A., Majali, T., Alsoud, M., & Al-Maaitah, T. A. (2021). The role of leadership styles on staffs job satisfaction in public organizations. *Journal of Contemporary Issues in Business and Government*, 27(1), 772–783. https://cibg.org.au/article-7791-23e972e333f12e7bb5df53807ba0b797.pdf

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Cakir, F. S., & Adiguzel, Z. (2020). Analysis of leader effectiveness in organization and knowledge sharing behavior on employees and organization. *SAGE Open*, *10*(1), 215824402091463.

https://doi.org/10.1177/2158244020914634

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Dimopoulos, A. (2020). Educational Leadership Effectiveness. Is it a Matter of a Leader's Characteristics, Behaviors, or Leadership Style? *Journal of Economics and Management Sciences*, *3*(1), p13. https://doi.org/10.30560/jems.v3n1p13
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Ghaffar, R., & Khan, A. M. (2024). Understanding Leadership Level of Principals, a Phenomenological Study in Punjab. *Annals of Human and Social Sciences*, *5*(2), 257-270. https://doi.org/10.35484/ahss.2024(5-II)25
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Ghaffar, R., Khan, A. M., & Rashid, S. (2023). Examining the Impact of Principal's Leadership Level on Job Embeddedness of College Faculty: A Qualitative Inquiry of Higher Education in Punjab. *Human Nature Journal of Social Sciences*, 4(2), 198-211.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Ghaffar, R., Rasheed, S., & Khan, A. M. (2024). Analyzing the Role of Leadership Level of Academic Leaders on Job Embeddedness of Faculty: A Study at Tertiary Level in Punjab. Pakistan Research Journal of Social Sciences, 3(1). https://hnpublisher.com/ojs/index.php/HNJSS/article/view/68

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Harris, A., & Jones, M. (2020). COVID 19 – school leadership in disruptive times. *School Leadership and Management, 40*(4), 243–247. https://doi.org/10.1080/13632434.2020.1811479
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Haryono, S., Amrullah, N. I. H., & Surah, S. (2020). The effect of principal leadership and teacher competence on teacher performance: The role of work motivation. *International Journal of Business Marketing and Management (IJBMM)*, *5*(4), 9-14.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Heath, R. L., & O'Hair, H. S. (2020). *Handbook of Risk and Crisis Communication.* (2020). In Routledge eBooks. https://doi.org/10.4324/9781003070726
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Imran, M., & Akhtar, N. (2023). Impact of ethical leadership practices on teachers' psychological safety and performance: a case of primary school heads in Karachi - Pakistan. *Academy of Education and Social Sciences Review*, *3*(2), 172–181. https://doi.org/10.48112/aessr.v3i2.505

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Ibrahim, A. U., & Daniel, C. O. (2019). Impact of leadership on organizational performance. *International Journal of Business, Management and Social Research, 6*(2), 367-374.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Imran, M., Kazmi, H. H., Rauf, M. B., Hafeez, A., Iqbal, S., & Solangi, S. U. R. (2022). Internationalization Education Leadership of Public Universities of Karachi. *Journal of Positive School Psychology*, 6(11), 1175-1188.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Kilag, O. K. T., Manguilimotan, A. M. G., Maraño, J. C., Jordan, R. P., Columna, P. A. F., & Camaso, M. F. A. (2023). A conceptual framework: A Systematic Literature Review on Educational Leadership and Management. *Science and Education*, 4(9), 262-273.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Lohr, S. L. (2021). *Sampling: Design and Analysis.* CRC Press. Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Gaol, N. T. L. (2021). School leadership in Indonesia: A systematic literature review. *Educational Management Administration & Leadership*, 51(4), 831–848. https://doi.org/10.1177/17411432211010811 Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Malmqvist, J., Hellberg, K., Möllås, G., Rose, R., & Shevlin, M. (2019). Conducting the pilot study: a neglected part of the research process? Methodological findings supporting the importance of piloting in qualitative research studies. *International Journal of Qualitative Methods*, 18, 160940691987834.

https://doi.org/10.1177/1609406919878341

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Marsen, S. (2019). Navigating Crisis: The role of communication in organizational crisis. *International Journal of Business Communication*, 57(2), 163–175. https://doi.org/10.1177/2329488419882981

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

McLeod, S., & Dulsky, S. (2021). Resilience, reorientation, and reinvention: school leadership during the early months of the COVID-19 pandemic. *Frontiers in Education*, 6. https://doi.org/10.3389/feduc.2021.637075

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Mohajan, H. K. (2020). Quantitative Research: a successful investigation in natural and social sciences. *Journal of Economic Development, Environment and People*, *9*(4). https://doi.org/10.26458/jedep.v9i4.679
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Nabella, S. D., Rivaldo, Y., Kurniawan, R., Nurmayunita, Sari, D. P., Luran, M. F., Amirullah, Saputra, E. K., Rizki, M., Sova, M., Nurhayati, & Wulandari, K. (2022). The influence of leadership and organizational culture mediated by organizational climate on governance at Senior High School in Batam City. *Journal of Educational and Social Research*, *12*(5), 119. https://doi.org/10.36941/jesr-2022-0127
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Ning, L., Niu, J., Bi, X., Yang, C., Liu, Z., Wu, Q., Ning, N., Liang, L., Liu, A., Hao, Y., Gao, L., & Liu, C. (2020). The impacts of knowledge, risk perception, emotion and information on citizens' protective behaviors during the outbreak of COVID-19: a cross-sectional study in China. *BMC Public Health*, 20(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s12889-020-09892-y
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Nishii, L. H., & Leroy, H. (2022). A Multi-Level framework of inclusive leadership in organizations. *Group & Organization Management*, 47(4), 683–722. https://doi.org/10.1177/10596011221111505
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Obilor, E. I. (2023). Convenience and purposive sampling techniques: Are they the same? *International Journal of Innovative Social & Science Education Research*, 11(1), 1-7.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Richardson, J., Bathon, J., & McLeod, S. (2021). *Leadership for deeper learning: Facilitating School Innovation and Transformation*. Eye on Education.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Saloviita, T., & Pakarinen, E. (2021). Teacher burnout explained:
 Teacher-, student-, and organisation-level variables. *Teaching and Teacher Education*, 97, 103221.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tate.2020.103221
 Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Shahbal, S., Al-Kubaisi, H., Khan, A., Ahmad, Z., & Usman, M. (2022). Leadership Styles, Role, and Opportunities; Reflection in Educational Management System. *Journal of Pharmaceutical Negative Results*, 1452-1460. http://dx.doi.org/10.47750/pnr.2022.13.S09.176
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Sweeney, A., Clarke, N., & Higgs, M. (2018). Shared Leadership in Commercial Organizations: A systematic review of definitions, theoretical frameworks and organizational outcomes. *International Journal of Management Reviews*, 21(1), 115–136. https://doi.org/10.1111/ijmr.12181
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Tamminen, K. A., & Poucher, Z. A. (2020). Research philosophies.
In D. Hackfort, R. J. Schinke, & B. Strauss (Eds.), *The Routledge International Encyclopedia of Sport and Exercise Psychology* (pp. 535-549). Routledge.

Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext

Young, M. D. (2021). Resilience, Reorientation, and Reinvention:
School Leadership during the Early Months of the COVID-19
Pandemic. *Human Resources Management Research*,
2018(2018), 1-10. Doi: 10.3389/feduc.2021.637075
Google Scholar Worldcat Fulltext